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Chapter 13 Section 6

Provider Exclusions, Suspensions, And Terminations

1.0 SCOPE AND PURPOSE

1.1 This section specifies which individuals and entities may, or in some cases must, be excluded 
from the TRICARE program. It outlines the authority given to the Department of Health and Human 
Services/Office of Inspector General (DHHS/OIG) to impose exclusions from all Federal health care 
programs, including TRICARE. This section also outlines the TRICARE Management Activity (TMA) 
authority for exclusions and terminations. In addition, this section states the effect of exclusion, 
factors considered in determining the length of exclusion, and provisions governing notices, 
determinations, and appeals.

1.2 Service Point of Contacts (SPOCs) do not have the authority to overturn a TMA or DHHS 
exclusion.

2.0 PROVISIONS FOR EXCLUSIONS, SUSPENSIONS, AND TERMINATIONS

2.1 Authority For Sanctioning Providers

2.1.1 32 CFR 199.9

32 CFR 199.9 provides for administrative remedies available to TMA for provider 
exclusions, suspensions, and/or terminations. The Director, TMA, or a designee, shall have the 
authority to exclude, suspend, and/or terminate an authorized TRICARE provider.

2.1.2 32 CFR 199.15

32 CFR 199.15 establishes rules and procedures for the TRICARE Quality and Utilization 
Review Peer Review Organization (PRO) program otherwise referred to as Quality Improvement 
Organization (QIO). The applicability of program covers all claims submitted for health services 
under TRICARE and subjects these claims to review for quality of care and appropriate utilization. 
The Director, TMA, is responsible for establishing generally accepted standards, norms, and criteria 
as necessary for this program of quality and utilization review. This section also provides for the 
imposition of sanctions on health care practitioners and providers of health care services 
recommended by a PRO.

2.1.3 Health Insurance Portability And Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, Public Law 
(PL) 104-191

HIPAA sets forth the DHHS/OIG’s exclusion and Civil Money Penalty (CMP) authorities. 
HIPAA expanded the minimum mandatory exclusion authority; established minimum periods of 
exclusion; established a new permissive exclusion authority; and extended the application of CMP 
provisions to include all Federal health care programs. In addition, HIPAA strengthened and revised 
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the DHHS/OIG’s existing CMP authorities.

2.1.4 The Balanced Budget Act Of 1997 (BBA)

The BBA fraud and abuse provisions serve to strengthen the DHHS/OIG’s exclusion and 
CMP authority with respect to Federal health care programs. The BBA enables the DHHS/OIG to 
direct the imposition of exclusions from all Federal health care programs.

3.0 DHHS/OIG APPLICATION OF SANCTION AUTHORITY

3.1 Exclusions

3.1.1 Mandatory Exclusions

3.1.1.1 DHHS/OIG will exclude the following individuals or entities from participation in any 
Federal health care program. (Note: Exclusion categories are subject to change by DHHS/OIG.)

• Felony conviction of program related crimes.

• Felony conviction related to patient abuse.

• Felony conviction relating to health care fraud (e.g., medical or pharmaceutical).

• Felony conviction related to controlled substance.

• Conviction of two mandatory exclusion offenses. Minimum period: 10 years.

• Conviction on three or more occasions of mandatory exclusion offenses. Permanent 
exclusion.

• Failure to enter an agreement to repay Health Education Assistance Loans. Minimum 
period: Until entire past obligation is repaid.

3.1.1.2 DHHS/OIG authority for mandatory exclusion applies where the criminal offense on 
which the conviction is based took place after August 21, 1996, and the conviction took place after 
January 1, 1997. DHHS/OIG authority does not apply if both conditions are not met. In these cases, 
TMA Program Integrity Office (PI) must initiate action to exclude.

3.1.1.3 Mandatory exclusions initiated by DHHS/OIG are for a minimum of five years, with the 
exceptions noted under paragraph 3.1.1.1. Aggravating factors may be considered as a basis for 
lengthening the period of exclusion.

3.1.2 Permissive Exclusions

3.1.2.1 DHHS/OIG may exclude the following individuals or entities from participation in any 
Federal health care program: (Note: Exclusion categories are subject to change by DHHS/OIG.)

• Misdemeanor conviction related to health care fraud. Minimum period: 3 years.
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• Conviction related to fraud in non-health care programs. Minimum period: 3 years.

• Misdemeanor conviction related to obstruction of an investigation. Minimum period: 
3 years.

• Misdemeanor conviction relating to a controlled substance. Minimum period: 3 years.

• License revocation or suspension. Minimum period: No less than the period imposed 
by the state licensing authority.

• Fraud, kickbacks, and other prohibited activities. Minimum period: None.

• Entities controlled by a sanctioned individual or individuals controlling a sanctioned 
entity. Minimum period: Same as length of individual’s exclusion.

• Entities controlled by a family or household member of an excluded individual and 
where there has been a transfer of ownership/control. Minimum period: Same as 
length of individual’s exclusion.

• Failure to disclose required information, supply requested information on 
subcontractors and suppliers; or supply payment information. Minimum period: 
None.

• Failure to take corrective action. Minimum Period: None.

• Default on health education loan or scholarship obligations. Minimum period: Until 
default has been cured and obligations have been resolved to Public Health Service’s 
satisfaction.

• Individuals controlling a sanctioned entity. Minimum period: Same period of entity.

• Failure to meet statutory obligations of practitioners and providers to provide 
medically necessary services meeting professionally recognized standards of health 
care (e.g., peer review, organization findings). Minimum period: 1 year.

• Claims for excessive charges, unnecessary services, or services which fail to meet 
professionally recognized standards of health standards of health care, or failure of an 
Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) to furnish medically necessary services. 
Minimum period: 1 year.

• Exclusion or suspension under a Federal or State health care program. Minimum 
period: No less than the period imposed by Federal or state health care program.

3.1.2.2 DHHS/OIG authority for permissive exclusions applies where the action (e.g., conviction, 
license revocation, etc.) took place after August 21, 1996, under Federal or State law. DHHS/OIG 
authority does not apply if this condition is not met. In these cases, TMA PI may initiate action to 
exclude.

3.1.2.3 Aggravating factors may be considered as a basis for lengthening the period of exclusion.
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3.1.3 The contractor is required to provide written notice to TMA PI of any situation involving a 
TRICARE provider or pharmacy who meets the criteria under the mandatory or permissive 
exclusion authority granted DHHS/OIG.

3.1.4 TMA PI is responsible for requesting DHHS/OIG initiate mandatory and permissive 
exclusions of TRICARE providers or pharmacies and will provide appropriate documentation 
needed to initiate separate sanction action (e.g., indictment, plea agreement, conviction 
document, sentencing document).

3.1.5 TMA PI will advise DHHS/OIG of TRICARE imposed sanctions and is responsible for 
supplying DHHS/OIG with the appropriate documentation needed to initiate separate sanction 
action.

3.2 Notice, Effective Date, Period Of Exclusion, And Appeals Process

DHHS/OIG has sole responsibility for issuing a written notice of its intent to exclude a 
provider, pharmacy, or entity, the basis for the exclusion, the effective date, the period of exclusion, 
and the potential effect of exclusion. DHHS/OIG will handle appeal of exclusions under paragraph 
3.0. See also Chapter 8, Section 1, paragraph 2.3.2, relative to exclusion of third party billing agents.

3.3 Requests For Reinstatement

DHHS/OIG has sole authority for terminating an exclusion imposed under their authority. 
DHHS/OIG will handle notifications of approval/denial of a request for reinstatement and are 
responsible for reversing or vacating decisions.

3.4 Program Notification Of Exclusion/Reinstatement

DHHS/OIG exclusions and reinstatements are issued on a monthly basis. DHHS/OIG will 
provide TMA PI with immediate access to this information via disk, which will then be forwarded to 
each contractor.

3.5 Scope and Effect Of The Exclusion

Exclusions taken by DHHS/OIG are binding on Medicare, Medicaid, and all Federal health care 
programs with the exception of the Federal Employee Health Benefit Program (FEHBP) (42 USC 
1320a-7b(f )). No payment will be made for any item or service furnished on or after the effective 
date of exclusion until an individual or entity is reinstated by DHHS/OIG, and subsequently meets 
the requirements under 32 CFR 199.6.

4.0 TMA APPLICATION OF SANCTION AUTHORITY

4.1 Sanction Authority

4.1.1 TMA may exclude any individual or entity based on 32 CFR 199.9 provisions including:

• Criminal and/or civil fraud involving TRICARE.

• Administrative determination of fraud and/or abuse under TRICARE.
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• Administrative determination that the provider has been excluded or suspended by 
another agency of the Federal Government, a state or local licensing authority.

• Revocation of provider credentials through the Department of Veterans Affairs (DVA) 
or Military Department credentials review process.

• Determination that the provider or pharmacy participated in a conflict of interest 
situation or received dual compensation.

• Violation of participation agreement or reimbursement limitations.

• Institutional providers who practice discrimination in violation of Title VI, of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964.

• Administrative determination that it is in the best interests of TRICARE or TRICARE 
beneficiaries. Examples include unethical or improper practices or unprofessional 
conduct by a TRICARE provider; a finding that the provider or pharmacy poses a 
potential for fraud, abuse, or professional misconduct; the provider poses a potential 
harm to the financial or health status of TRICARE beneficiaries.

• QIO recommendation to exclude under the provisions set forth in 32 CFR 199.15.

4.1.2 The contractor is required to provide written notice to TMA PI of any situation involving a 
TRICARE provider or pharmacy who meets the criteria under the TMA sanction authority.

4.2 Period Of Exclusion/Suspension

The Director, TMA or designee, has the authority to exclude or suspend an authorized 
TRICARE provider or pharmacy. The period of exclusion or suspension is at the discretion of TMA. 
(See 32 CFR 199.9.)

4.3 Notice Of Exclusion Action

The TMA PI has sole authority for issuing notification of exclusion action. The TMA PI will send 
written notice of its intent, the basis for the proposed exclusion, and the potential effect of 
exclusion. The individual or entity may submit evidence and written argument concerning whether 
the exclusion is warranted. The TMA PI also has sole authority to issue an Initial Determination of 
Exclusion. Written notice of this decision will include the basis for the exclusion, the length of the 
exclusion, as well as the effect of the exclusion. The determination also outlines the earliest date on 
which the TMA PI will consider a request for reinstatement, the requirements for reinstatement, and 
appeal rights available. The TMA PI will notify appropriate agencies, to include contractors, of all 
exclusion actions taken. The TMA PI will be responsible for initiating action based on reversed or 
vacated decisions.

4.4 Effect Of The Exclusion

Exclusion of a provider, pharmacy, or entity shall be effective 15 calendar days from the date 
of the Initial Determination. TMA-approved PRO sanctions will take effect 120 days from the date of 
the contractor’s final notice. The contractor is responsible for ensuring that no payment is made to 
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a sanctioned provider, pharmacy, or entity for care provided on or after the date of the TMA action. 
The contractor must also ensure that a sanctioned provider, pharmacy, or entity is not included in 
the network and that appropriate steps are taken to notify appropriate parties of exclusion action 
taken by TMA as outlined in paragraph 5.0.

4.5 Request For Termination Of Exclusion

The Director, TMA or designee has sole authority for approval of any request for termination 
of an exclusion action. TMA PI will consult the contractor concerning any amounts owed prior to 
reinstatement of an excluded provider or entity. See Section 7 for additional guidance.

4.6 Provider or Network Pharmacy Termination

Administrative remedies are available to the Director, TMA or designee, as well as contractors, 
for initiating termination action. TMA PI will terminate the authorized provider status of any 
provider, network pharmacy, or entity determined not to meet program requirements only in 
circumstances where exclusion is also warranted. A provider or entity shall submit a written request 
for reinstatement to TRICARE. A network pharmacy shall submit a written request for reinstallment 
to the contractor. The request for reinstatement will be processed under the procedures 
established for initial requests for authorized provider or network pharmacy status. See Section 7 
for further information.

4.7 Other Listings

As identified, other listings of actions affecting provider authorization status (e.g., Federation 
of State Medical Boards of the United States) will be sent to each contractor. A provider who has 
licenses to practice in two or more jurisdictions and has one or more licenses suspended or revoked 
shall be terminated as a TRICARE provider in all jurisdictions.

5.0 CONTRACTOR APPLICATION OF SANCTION AUTHORITY

Contractors shall ensure the enforcement of all sanction action taken, notify appropriate 
parties and its effect upon payment by TRICARE for any services, pharmaceuticals, or supplies 
provided or received.

5.1 Contractor Actions Under DHHS/OIG Exclusion Authority

5.1.1 The contractor is required to provide written notice to TMA PI of any TRICARE provider 
who meets the criteria under the mandatory or permissive exclusion authority granted DHHS/OIG. 
The notice must include appropriate documentation relevant to the situation (e.g., notice of license 
revocation, notice of a misdemeanor convictions, etc.).

5.1.2 The contractor will be provided immediate access to the monthly issuance of DHHS/OIG 
exclusion and reinstatement actions and is responsible for:

5.1.2.1 Ensuring that no payment is made to a sanctioned provider, network pharmacy, or entity 
for care provided on or after the date of the DHHS/OIG action. (See Addendum A, Figure 13.A-8.) 
Neither the provider, entity, nor the patient will be entitled to TRICARE cost-sharing once the 
exclusion is effective. The contractor must notify TMA PI should a provider, network pharmacy, or 
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entity attempt to bill the program or if payment has been issued after the effective date of 
exclusion. It will not be necessary for the contractor to issue a separate letter notifying the provider 
or network pharmacy of the sanction action.

5.1.2.2 Ensuring that a sanctioned provider, pharmacy, or entity is not included in the network. If 
cancellation of a network, or if applicable, participating provider agreement is required, the 
contractor shall ensure that the network provider or network pharmacy whose contract has been 
cancelled clearly understands his/her status. This shall be accomplished by providing notice, by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, that the network provider’s or network pharmacy’s 
agreement has been cancelled.

5.1.2.3 Issuing a special beneficiary notice (Addendum A, Figure 13.A-9) for claims having a date 
of service following the effective date of the DHHS/OIG exclusion. The contractor shall also ensure 
that proper notification is given to all Health Benefit Advisors (HBAs) within the provider’s service 
area (approximately 100 miles). TRICARE Regional Office (TRO) staff in the geographical area(s) of 
the provider’s practice shall also be given notice of sanction action taken.

5.1.2.4 Initiating appropriate reinstatement action. DHHS/OIG will advise on the monthly listing 
if and when a previously sanctioned provider or pharmacy is reinstated. That is the date that the 
contractor is to use for reinstatement. The contractor does not need to advise the provider or 
pharmacy of the reinstatement by DHHS/OIG, but will be responsible for ensuring that the provider 
or entity meets the regulatory requirements as an authorized TRICARE provider or pharmacy. See 
Section 7, for additional guidance. The same agencies originally advised of sanction shall also be 
notified of the reinstatement.

5.2 Contractor Actions Under TRICARE Exclusion Authority - 32 CFR 199.9

5.2.1 The contractor is required to provide written notice to TMA PI of any TRICARE provider or 
pharmacy who meets the criteria under the exclusion authority granted TRICARE. The notice must 
include appropriate documentation relevant to the situation (e.g., provider or pharmacy poses 
unreasonable potential for fraud).

5.2.2 The contractor will be notified immediately of an exclusion action taken by the TMA PI 
and is responsible for:

5.2.2.1 Ensuring that no payment is made to a sanctioned provider, pharmacy, or entity for care 
provided on or after the date of the TMA action. Neither the provider, pharmacy, entity, nor the 
patient will be entitled to TRICARE cost-sharing once the exclusion is effective. The contractor must 
notify TMA PI should a provider, pharmacy, or entity attempt to bill the program after the effective 
date of exclusion. It will not be necessary for the contractor to issue a separate letter notifying the 
provider or pharmacy of the sanction action. However, notice of sanction action taken by TMA shall 
be given to all HBAs located within the provider’s service area (approximately 100 miles) of the 
practice address of the excluded provider. TROs in the geographical area(s) of the provider’s 
practice shall also be given notice of sanction action taken.

5.2.2.2 Ensuring that a sanctioned provider, pharmacy, or entity is not included in the network. If 
cancellation of a network provider agreement is required, the contractor shall ensure that the 
network provider whose contract has been cancelled clearly understands his/her status. This shall 
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be accomplished by providing notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, that the network 
provider’s or network pharmacy’s agreement has been cancelled (a copy to be provided to TMA PI).

5.2.2.3 Issuing a special notice to any beneficiary who submits a claim or for whom a claim is 
submitted, which includes services involving a sanctioned provider. The notice may be enclosed 
with the Explanation of Benefits (EOB), whether the claim is payable or not, or a separate letter may 
be sent. The substance of the message should be similar to the example shown under Addendum 
A, Figure 13.A-9.

5.2.2.4 Initiating appropriate action, as instructed, following reversed or vacated decisions 
issued by the TMA PI or termination of sanction action by TMA. The same agencies originally 
advised of sanction shall also be notified of the reinstatement.

5.3 Contractor Actions Under TRICARE Exclusion Authority - 32 CFR 199.15

5.3.1 Under the TRICARE regulation, the provisions of 42 CFR 1004.1-1004.80 (Imposition of 
Sanctions by a PRO) shall apply to the TRICARE program as they do the Medicare program, except 
that the functions specified in those sections for the DHHS/OIG shall be the responsibility of 
TRICARE. As such, contractors shall adopt the DHHS PRO procedures and rules set forth under 42 
CFR 1004.

5.3.2 The 32 CFR 199.15 establishes the process for imposition of sanctions on health care 
practitioners and providers of health care services by a QIO. The process includes:

• Setting forth certain obligations imposed on practitioners and providers of service 
under TRICARE;

• Establishing criteria and procedures for the reports required from QIOs when there is 
failure to meet those obligations;

• Specifying the policies and procedures for making determinations on violations and 
imposing sanctions; and

• Defining the procedures for appeals by the affected party and the procedures for 
reinstatements.

5.3.3 After meeting the objectives and requirements of the review system under 32 CFR 199.15 
and taking appropriate action(s) as a result of the review, the contractor is required to notify 
TRICARE of all recommended actions.

5.3.4 Following notification to TRICARE PI of the proposed recommended action to sanction 
under the provisions of 32 CFR 199.15, TMA PI will follow the procedures set forth in 32 CFR 199.9.

5.4 Contractor Requirements For Terminating a Provider or Network Pharmacy

When a provider’s or network pharmacy’s status as an authorized TRICARE provider is ended, 
the contractor will initiate termination action based on a finding that the provider, pharmacy, or 
entity does not meet the qualifications to be an authorized provider, etc. Foreign providers of care 
can be terminated from the contractor’s network if it is determined that they are engaged in 
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egregious patterns of billing or submitting abusive or fraudulent claims, in violation of any of the 
provisions in 32 CFR 199.9.

Note: Separate termination action by the contractor will not be required for a provider, 
pharmacy, or entity sanctioned under the exclusion authority granted DHHS/OIG.

5.4.1 Period Of Termination

The period of termination will be indefinite and will end only after the provider, 
pharmacy, or entity has successfully met the established qualifications for authorized status under 
TRICARE and has been reinstated under TRICARE.

5.4.2 Notice Of Proposed Action To Terminate

The contractor shall notify the provider in writing of the proposed action to terminate the 
provider’s status as an authorized TRICARE provider when the provider falls within the contractor’s 
certifying responsibility and the provider fails to meet the requirements of 32 CFR 199.6 
(Addendum A, Figure 13.A-10). The provider is not to be terminated when he/she fails to return 
certification packets. Such providers will be flagged as “inactive” (see paragraph 5.4.4). Do not send 
a copy of the proposed notice to the TMA PI. The notice will be sent to the provider’s last known 
business/office address, or home address if there is no known business/office address.

Note: The pharmacy contractor shall notify the pharmacy in writing of the proposed action to 
terminate the pharmacy status as a network pharmacy when it is not in compliance with its 
agreement and the pharmacy fails to meet the requirements of 32 CFR 199.6 (Addendum A, Figure 
13.A-10).

5.4.2.1 The notice shall state that the provider or pharmacy will be terminated as of the effective 
date of the sanction action. The notice shall also inform the provider or pharmacy of the situation(s) 
or action(s) which form the basis for the proposed termination.

5.4.2.2 For network providers, the notice shall inform the provider that his/her patients will be 
referred to another provider pending final action. For a network pharmacy, the notice shall inform 
the pharmacy that beneficiary prescriptions may not be filled there and any claims submitted will 
be denied as not part of the network.

5.4.2.3 The notice shall offer the provider or pharmacy an opportunity to respond within 30 
calendar days from the date of the notice. An extension to 60 calendar days may be granted if a 
written request is received during the 30 calendar days showing good cause. The provider or 
pharmacy may respond with either documentary evidence and written argument contesting the 
proposed action or a written request to present in person evidence or argument to a contractor’s 
designee at the contractor’s location. Expenses incurred by the provider are the responsibility of 
the provider or pharmacy.

5.4.2.4 Once the notice of proposed action to terminate is sent, the provider’s claims will be 
suspended from claims processing until an Initial Determination is issued. The provider will be 
notified via the proposed notice that the claims will be suspended from claims processing. 
However, beneficiaries will not be notified of the suspension.
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5.4.2.5 For pharmacy claims, once the notice of proposed action to terminate is sent, the 
pharmacy’s claims will not be processed as network claims until an Initial Determination is issued. 
The pharmacy will be notified via the notice that the claims will not be processed as network 
claims. Beneficiaries will be advised by the pharmacy that it is no longer a network pharmacy and 
that any prescription filled there will require submittal of a claim for reimbursement by the 
beneficiary.

5.4.2.6 If the provider being terminated is a Primary Care Manager (PCM), the contractor shall 
assist Prime enrollees with selecting a new PCM. The contractor is also responsible for assuring that 
the patient’s medical records are transferred to the new PCM. Efforts shall be taken to notify 
Standard beneficiaries in a cost-effective manner.

5.4.3 Initial Determination

If after the provider or pharmacy has exhausted, or failed to comply with the procedures 
for appealing the proposed termination, and the decision to terminate remains unchanged, the 
contractor shall invoke an administrative remedy of termination by issuing a written notice of the 
Initial Determination via certified mail. A copy of the Initial Determination will be sent to TMA PI 
along with supporting documentation. The Initial Determination shall include:

5.4.3.1 A Unique Identification Number (UIN) indicating the fiscal year of the Initial 
Determination, a consecutive number within that fiscal year and the contractor’s name. A sample 
letter is found at Addendum A, Figure 13.A-11.

5.4.3.2 A statement of the sanction being invoked and the effective date of the sanction. The 
effective date shall be the date the provider or pharmacy no longer meets the regulatory 
requirements. If there is no documentation the provider ever met the requirements, the effective 
date will be either June 10, 1977 (the effective date of the Regulation) or the date on which the 
provider or pharmacy was first approved, whichever date is later. In the case of a pharmacy, it 
would be the date on which the pharmacy first became part of the network.

5.4.3.3 A statement of the facts, circumstances, and/or actions that forms the basis for the 
termination and a discussion of any information submitted by the provider or pharmacy relevant to 
the termination.

5.4.3.4 A statement of the provider’s or pharmacy’s right to appeal.

5.4.3.5 The requirements and procedures for reinstatement.

5.4.4 Providers Failing To Return Recertification Documentation

Providers failing to return recertification documentation shall not be terminated but will 
be placed on the “inactive” provider listing. The contractor shall first verify that the recertification 
package was mailed to the correct address and was not returned by the U.S. Post Office. The 
provider’s file shall be flagged to deny claims for services regardless of who submits the claim. The 
provider shall be advised that such action will be taken. Refer to Section 2 regarding development 
of possible fraud cases.
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5.4.5 Requirement To Recoup Erroneous Payments

After the Initial Determination has been sent, the contractor shall initiate recoupment for 
any claims cost-shared or paid for services or supplies furnished by the provider (or pharmacy for 
any previously paid claims for pharmaceuticals or supplies furnished by the pharmacy) on or after 
the effective date of termination, even when the effective date is retroactive, unless a specified 
exception is provided by 32 CFR 199. This applies to claims processed by previous contractors as 
well. All monies paid by previous contractors and recouped by the current contractor will be 
refunded to TMA Finance and Accounting Office (F&AO). Refer to Chapter 3.

5.4.6 Cancellation Of Network Provider or Pharmacy Agreements

The contractor shall ensure that a network provider or pharmacy whose contract has 
been cancelled clearly understands his/her status, and shall initiate termination action if required. 
This shall be accomplished by providing notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, that the 
network provider’s or pharmacy’s agreement has been cancelled. Cancellation of a network 
provider contract and termination of a TRICARE provider are to be handled as two separate and 
distinct actions.

Note: The Health Integrity and Protection Data Bank must be notified immediately if a provider 
is released from a network provider agreement for cause (e.g., adverse reasons involving 
fraudulent/abusive practices). The contractor shall coordinate this notification with TMA PI.

5.5 File Requirements For A Terminated Provider or Pharmacy

The Initial Determination file shall only include documentation that is releasable to the 
provider or pharmacy. This file should also include:

5.5.1 Initial Determination of Termination Action as well as Proposed Notice to Terminate.

5.5.2 Provider certification file (i.e., the documentation upon which the original certification of 
the provider was based) or network pharmacy agreement.

5.5.3 All correspondence and documentation relating to the termination. Copies of the 
enclosures must be attached to the copy of the original correspondence.

5.5.4 Documentation that the contractor considered or relied upon in issuing a Determination.

5.6 Special Action/Notice Requirements When An Institution Is Terminated

When a TMA determination is made that an institutional provider does not meet 
qualifications or standards to be an authorized TRICARE provider, the contractor shall take 
appropriate action.
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5.6.1 Provider And Beneficiary Notification

The contractor shall:

5.6.1.1 Instruct the institution by certified mail to immediately give written notice of the 
termination to any TRICARE beneficiary (or his/her parent, guardian, or other representative) 
admitted to or receiving care at the institution on or after the effective date of the termination.

5.6.1.2 When the termination effective date is after the date of the initial determination, notify 
by certified mail any beneficiary (or their parent, guardian, or other representative) admitted prior 
to the date of the termination and that TRICARE cost-sharing ended as of the termination date. 
Advise the beneficiary (or their parent, guardian, or other representative) of their financial liability. 
(The contractor shall also use a fast, effective means of notice (e.g., phone, fax, express mail, or 
regular mail, depending on the circumstances.)

5.6.1.3 If an institution is granted a grace period to effect correction of a minor violation, notify 
any beneficiary (or his/her parent, guardian, or other representative) admitted prior to the grace 
period of the violation and that TRICARE cost-sharing of covered care will continue during that 
period. (Cost-sharing is to continue through the last day of the month following the month in 
which the institution is terminated.)

5.6.1.4 In addition, notify any beneficiary (or their parent, guardian, or other representative) 
admitted prior to a grace period of the institution’s corrective action, when such has been 
determined to have occurred, and the continuation of the institution as an authorized TRICARE 
provider.

5.6.1.5 For a beneficiary admitted during a grace period, cost-share only that care received after 
12:01 a.m., on the day written notice of correction of a minor violation was received or the day 
corrective action was completed.

5.6.2 Cost-Sharing Actions

The contractor shall:

5.6.2.1 Deny cost-sharing for any new patient admitted after the effective date of the 
termination.

5.6.2.2 Deny cost-sharing for any beneficiary admitted during a grace period granted an 
institution involved in a minor violation.

5.6.2.3 Deny cost-sharing for any beneficiary already in an institution involved in a major 
violation beginning with the effective date of the termination.

5.6.2.4 Cost-share covered care for those beneficiaries admitted prior to a grace period.

5.7 Requests For Reinstatement

See Section 7.
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6.0 CONTRACTOR ACTIONS IN CASES INVOLVING POTENTIAL VIOLATIONS BY PROVIDERS

Upon receipt of a complaint that an institution may be violating a TRICARE requirement, the 
contractor shall take the following actions:

6.1 In any case when it comes to a contractor’s attention that a facility may not be in compliance 
with TRICARE requirements, TMA PI shall be notified immediately. Complaints of violations in 
hospitals and skilled nursing facilities shall be fully documented by the contractor and forwarded 
to TMA PI.

6.2 A detailed description of the suspected violation must be obtained by the contractor from 
the source of the complaint. The names of all TRICARE beneficiaries known or believed to be 
currently in the facility shall be included with the contractor’s report of the complaint.

6.3 TMA PI may request the contractor to conduct an on-site evaluation of a specific facility or to 
assist in conducting such a facility review. Specific instructions will be provided when participation 
in an on-site evaluation is required.

7.0 VIOLATION OF THE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT OR REIMBURSEMENT LIMITATION

7.1 The contractor is responsible to ensure that providers adhere to their participation 
agreements and the reimbursement limitation. Corrective action is required for a provider who 
submits participating claims but does not honor the agreement to accept as the full charge the 
amount the contractor determines to be the allowable charge for the service or the provider who 
violates the 115% reimbursement limitation. Beneficiary complaints about breach of the allowable 
charge participating agreement or reimbursement limitation shall be resolved by the contractor 
staff, e.g., explaining to the provider the commitment made in accepting participation or regarding 
the Appropriations Act. All institutional violation letters must be addressed by name to the hospital 
administrator. The contractor shall get assurance that the provider will identify and refund any 
money inappropriately collected and refrain from billing beneficiaries for the reductions on 
participating claims or in violation of the 115% reimbursement limitation in the future. (See 
Addendum A, Figure 13.A-12, Figure 13.A-13, Figure 13.A-14, and Figure 13.A-15). The letter should 
be addressed to the name of the person who has the authority to resolve the administrative matter. 
(This could be the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the billing manager, or the provider of services.) 
The provider shall be advised that violating the participation agreement or reimbursement 
limitation subjects the provider to sanction action. The letter should also contain the name, 
telephone number and e-mail address of whom to contact at the contractor. A request should be 
made for the provider to send the contractor a copy of the zero balance statement to verify that the 
issue has been resolved. In a violation of a participation agreement of balance billing limitation 
case, the contractor shall advise the provider to cease billing the beneficiary for amounts in excess 
of the appropriate amount and calculate the overpayment for the provider to refund to the 
beneficiary.

7.2 If after two notices a provider refuses to make refunds, continues to violate participation 
agreements or reimbursement limitations, or brings suit against beneficiaries who refuse to pay the 
amount of the reduction, the contractor shall bring the matter to the immediate attention of the 
TMA PI. The contractor shall also submit a copy of all supporting documents. This includes claims, 
EOBs, educational letters to the provider, patient’s canceled check copy or provider’s billing 
statement.
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7.3 The contractor shall follow the same procedures listed above for those providers signing 
special TRICARE participating provider agreements (Residential Treatment Centers (RTCs), Partial 
Hospitalization Programs (PHPs), Substance User Disorder Rehabilitation Facilities (SUDRFs), and 
Marriage and Family Counseling Centers (MFCCs)).

- END -
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